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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED (Formerly 

MEDINIPUR-JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Report on the Ind-AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of Mfs POWERGRID 

MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED (Formerly MEDINIPUR-JEERAT TRANSMISSION 

LIMITED) ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March2020, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and 

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2020, its profit including 

other comprehensive income, its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Key Audit Matters 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 



of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to 

Board's Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard 

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these IndAS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of 

the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that · g effectively for 

~ 

2 



ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable , matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 

reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. The company being a private limited 

company and also not meeting the criteria for internal ti·~;; ~ ~ 

~s 
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reporting , we are not liable for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal 

financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 

to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

' ~$2=.l~I.!. on our independence, and 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order''), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in" Annexure "A" 

a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 

applicable. 

2. In terms of sub section (5) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure 

"B"a statement on the directions issued under the aforesaid section by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India. 

3. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 

Income),the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act,read with the relevant 

rules issued thereunder. 

e. Being a Subsidiary of a Government Company, Section 164(2) of the Act pertaining to 

disqualification of Directors are not applicable to the Company. 
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting of the Company and the Operating Effectiveness of such Controls, refer to 

our separate report in Annexure "C". 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note No. 32 to the Ind AS 

financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any Long-Term Contracts including Derivative 

Contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Jain Seth & Company, 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 002069W 

Bishnu Kant Agrawal 
Partner 

Membership No. 053700 

UDIN: 20053700AAAACC5569 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 01.06.2020 
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Annexure - "A" 

As referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the M/s POWERGRID 

MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED (FORMERLY MEDINIPUR-JEERAT 

TRANSMISSION LIMITED) ('the Company') (, on the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st 

March, 2020, we report that: 

(i) (a) The Company has maintained records, showing full particulars including quantitative details 

and situation of Fixed Assets. 

(b) Land, Furniture and fixtures and Office equipment are the only Fixed Asset. Physical 

Verification of furniture and fixtures was conducted during the year. 

(c) The Company is having leasehold land of 33.59 hectares valuing Rs. 1425.57 Lakh for which the 

lease deed is already executed. 

( d) The Company is having freehold land of 32.88 hectares valuing Rs. 6218.01 Lakh for which the 

title deed is yet to be executed which is capitalized on the basis of possession certificate from Nadia 

Zilla Parishad. 

(ii) The company does not hold any inventories as on 31.03.20 hence clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of 

the order is not applicable. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any Loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other 

parties Covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any 

loans, investments guarantees and securities. Accordingly clause 3(iv) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits from Public and hence the directives issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 

act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted 

from the public are not applicable. 

(vi) Thco.-e is no such Cost Records specified by Central Government u/ s 148 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in 

depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate authorities including Income Tax, Sales Tax, 

Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues 

applicable to the Company and that there are no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at 31st 

March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) Based on our audit and explanations given to us, there are no · -gteQI/. s of Duty of 

Customs or Duty of Excise of Sales Tax which have not been deposited. '-J~ 
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any 

loan from any financial institution or bank or debenture holders, hence clause (viii) of paragraph 3 

of the order is not applicable. 

(ix) The company has not raised Money by way of IPO & FPO including debt instruments. 

However, Loan from holding Company are applied for the purposes for which they are raised. 

(x) Based on our audit Procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or 

employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi) Based on our audit Procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, Managerial Remuneration & Other Payments relating to Staff are made from Holding 

Co. Hence clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order is Not Applicable. 

(xii) The company is not an Nidhi company as prescribed U / s 406 of the act. Accordingly clause 

(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable. 

(xiii) All transactions with the "Related Parties" in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are disclosed. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 

or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 

(xv) Based on our audit Procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with him. 

(xvi) The Co. is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 as the Co. is not a NBFC. 

Bishnu Kant Agrawal 

Partner 

Membership No. 053700 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 01/06/2020 
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Annexure - "B" 

As referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of the Mfs POWERGRID 

MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED (FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION 

LIMITED) ('The Company'), on the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2020 issued 

by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

w tth t ere por a: 

s. 
Directions 

No. 

Whether the Company has 

system in place to process all the 

accounting transactions through 

1. IT system? If yes, the 

implications of processing of 

accounting transactions outside 

IT system on 

Whether there is any 

restructuring of an existing loan 

or cases of waiver/write off of 

2. 
debts/ loans/ interest etc. made 

by a lender to the company due 

to the company's inability to 

repay the loan? If yes, the 

financial impact may be stated. 

Whether funds 

received/ receivable for specific 

3. 
schemes from Central/State 

agc·tcies were 

properly accounted for/utilized 
::t<; nor He f.n•m :>nrl rnnrlit-innc? 

Bishnu Kant Agrawal 

Partner 

Membership No. 053700 

Place: Kor.~ata 

Date: 01/06/2020 

Auditors Comments 
Action Taken By Impact on Financial 

Management Statements 

All accounting 

transaction of the 

Company are processed 

through the ERP (SAP N/A Nil 
System) that has been 

implemented by the 

Company. No 

There are no cases of 

restructuring of existing 
N/A Nil 

loan or cases of waiver 

/ write off of debts I 
loans/ interest etc. 

No fund has been 

received from 
N/A Nil 

Central/State agencies. 
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ANNEXURE - "C" 

As referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the M/s 

POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED (FORMERLY MEDINIPUR­

JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) ("the Company"), on the Financial Statements for the year 

ended 31st March 2020 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the act") 

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the company as at 

31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial 

Control based on "the Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the Design, 

Implementation and Maintenance of Adequate Internal Financial Controls that were Operating 

Effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to 

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the Prevention and Detection of Frauds and 

Errors, the accuracy and completeness of the Accounting Records, and the Timely Preparation of 

Reliable Financial Information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 

Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal 

Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate Inte inancial Controls over Financial Reporting was 

established and maintained and if ~ $~T tr l-I @ rated effectively in all material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

Internal Financial Controls System over Financial Reporting and their Operating Effectiveness. 

Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

Internal Control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's 

Judgement, including the Assessment of the Risks of Material Misstatement of the Financial 

Statements, whether due to Fraud or Error. 

We believe that the Audit Evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls System over Financial 

Reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 

of Financial Statements for External Purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that: 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's Assets that could have a material effect on the 

Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 



because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial 

Controls System over Financial Reporting and such Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on "the Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India." 

For Jain Seth & Company, 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 002069W 

~ 
Bishnu Kant Agrawal 

Partner 

Membership No. 053700 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 01.06.2020 



Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Corporate and General Information 

M/ s PowergridMedinipurJeerat Transmission Limited ('the Company') is a public 

company domiciled and incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies 

Act and a wholly owned subsidiary of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited. The 

registered office of the Company is situated at B-9, Qutab Institutional Area, 

Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi, 110016, India. 

The company is engaged in business of Power Systems Network, construction, 

operation and maintenance of h·ansmission lines and other related allied activities. 

The financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2020 were 

approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 0151 June, 2020. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the 

financial statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied 

consistently to all periods presented in the financial sta tements. 

2.1 Basis of Preparation 

i) Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

Act), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the relevant 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified), The Companies Act, 

1956 and the provisions of Electricity Act, 2003, in each case, to the extent 

applicable and as amended thereafter. 

ii) Basis of Measurement 

111e financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the 

historical cost convention except certain financial assets and liabilities measured at 

fair value (refer Note no. 2.11 for accounting policy regarding financial 

insh·uments). 



iii) Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rupees or~), which is the 

Company's functional and presentation currency and all amounts are rounded to 

the nearest lakh and two decimals thereof, except as stated otherwise. 

iv) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the 

reporting period. Although, such estimates and assumptions are made on a 

reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all available information, actual 

results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying 

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects 

only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future years (refer Note no. 3 on critical accounting 

estimates, assumptions and judgments). 

v) Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on 

current/non-current classification. 

An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 

cycle; 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless resh·icted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of h·ading; 



• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

• 111ere is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for a t least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current. 

The Company recognizes twelve months period as its operating cycle. 

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured a t cost of 

acquisition/ construction including any costs directly attributable to bringing the 

asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of opera ting in the 

manner intended by management. After initial recognition, Property, Plant and 

Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortisation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing asse ts are 

capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from active use 

are derecognized. 

lf the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cos t 

of similar new parts/ inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the 

existing part/ inspection component was when the item was acquired or inspection 

was carried out. 

In the case of commissioned assets where final settlement of bills with contractors is 

yet to be effected , capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary 

adjustments in the year of final settlement. 

Transmission system assets are considered as ready for intended use after mee ting 

the conditions for commercial operation as stipulated in Transmission Service 

Agreement (TSA) and capitalized accordingly. 

The cost of land includes provisional deposits, payments/liabilities towards 

compensation, rehabilitation and other expenses wherever possession of land 1s 

taken . ~ 



Expenditure on levelling, clearing and grading of land is capitalized as part of cost of 

the related buildings. 

Spares parts whose cost is ~5,00,000/- and above, standby equipment and servicing 

equipment which meets the recognition criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment 

are capitalized. 

Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in carrying amount of assets 

when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred 

will flow to the company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is recognized in 

the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that future economic benefits 

embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured 

reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the 

day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit & Loss as incurred. 

Derecognition 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized when no future economic 

benefits are expected from their use or upon disposal. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of properly, plant 

and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss on the date of disposal or retirement. 

2.3 Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP) 

Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for the consh'uction of 

Property, Plant and Equipment are shown as CWIP based on progress of erection 

work till the date of capitalization. 

Expenditure of office and Projects, directly attributable to construction of property, 

plant and equipment are identified and allocated on a systematic basis to the cost of 

the related assets. 



Unsettled liability for price variation/ exchange rate variation in case of contracts is 

accounted for on estimated basis as per terms of the contracts. 

2.4 Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under development 

Intangible assets are measured on injtial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, 

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

Subsequent expenditure on already capitalized Intangible assets is capitalised when 

it increases the future economic benefits embodied in an existing asset and is 

amortised prospectively. 

The cost of software (which is not an integral part of the related hardware) acquired 

for internal use and resulting in significant future economic benefits is recognized as 

an intangible asset when the same is ready for its use. 

Afforestation charges for acquiring right-of-way for laying transmission lines are 

accounted for as intangible assets on the date of capitalization of related 

transmission lines. 

Expenditure incurred, eligible for capitaliza tion under the head Intangible Assets, 

are carried as "Intangible Assets under Development'' till such assets are ready for 

their intended use. 

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from 

de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

2.5 Depreciation/ Amortisation 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Depreciation/ amortisation on the items of property, plant and equipment related to 

transmission business is provided on straight line method following the rates and 

methodology notified by the CERC for the purpose of recovery of tariff except for 

property, plant and equipment specified in the following paragraphs. 

Depreciation on spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which are 

capitalized, is provided on sh·aight line method from the date they arc available for 

use over the remaining useful life of the related assets of h·ansmisI ·on business, 

following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC. 

~ t0ETIJ ~ ~ L ~ ___.> 
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Depreciation on following items of property, plant and equipment is provided based 

on estimated useful life as per technical assessment. 

Particulars Useful life 

a. Computers & Peripherals 3 Years 

b. Servers & Network Components 5 years 

Residual value of above assets is considered as Nil. 

Mobile phones are charged off in the year of purchase. 

Property, plant and equipment costing {5,000/- or less, are fully depreciated in the 

year of acquisition. 

Where the cost of depreciable property, plant and equipment has undergone a 

change due to increase/ decrease in long term monetary items on account of 

exchange rate fluctuation, price adjustment, change in duties or similar factors, the 

unamortized balance of such asset is depreciated prospectively at the rates and 

methodology as specified by the CERC Tariff Regulations. 

Depreciation on additions to/ deductions from Property, Plant and Equipment 

during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset 

is available for use/ disposed. 

"TI1e residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation for item s of property, 

plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted 

prospectively, wherever required. 

Right of Use Assets: 

Right of Use assets are fully depreciated from the lease commencement date on a 

sb"aight line basis over the lease term. 

Leasehold land is fully amortized over lease period or life of the related plant 

whichever is lower in accordance with the rates and methodology specified in CERC 

Tariff Regulation. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

Intangible Assets 

Cost of software capitalized as intangible asset is amorlized over the period of legal 

right to use or 3 years, whichever is less with Nil residual value. ~ 



Afforestation charges are amortized over thirty five years from the date of 

capitalization of related transmission assets following the rates and methodology 

notified by Central Elech·icity Regulatory Commission (CERC) Tariff Regulations. 

Amortisation on additions to/ deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is 

charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 

use/ disposed. 

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset are 

reviewed at each financial year-end and are accounted for as change in accounting 

estimates in accordance with Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors" 

2.6 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or consh·uction of qualifying 

assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till the assets are ready for the 

intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to 

get ready for their intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the 

period in which they are incurred. 

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets arc reviewed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment 

considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'. If any such 

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-genera ting unit is the higher of its fair 

value less costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time va lue of money 

and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have 

not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that caru1ot be 

tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 

generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 

inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the" cash-generating unit", or "CCU"). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU 

exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses arc recognized in the 

~ 



Afforestation charges are amortized over thirty five years from the date of 

capitalization of related transmission assets following the rates and methodology 

notified by Central Elech·icity Regulatory Commission (CERC) Tariff Regulations. 

Amortisation on additions to/ deductions from Intangible Assets during the year is 

charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 

use/ disposed. 

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset are 

reviewed at each financial year-end and are accounted for as change in accounting 

estimates in accordance with Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors" 

2.6 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or consh·uction of qualifying 

assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till the assets are ready for the 

intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to 

get ready for their intended use. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the 

period in which they are incurred. 

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets arc reviewed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment 

considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'. If any such 

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-genera ting unit is the higher of its fair 

value less costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time va lue of money 

and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have 

not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that caru1ot be 

tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 

generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 

inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the" cash-generating unit", or "CCU"). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU 

exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses arc recognized in the 

~ 



statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are 

reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting 

date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 

impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 

determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the 

extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if n o 

impairment loss had been recognized. 

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and deposits held at 

call with banks having a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition 

that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 

insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.9 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost, determined on weighted average basis 

and net rea lizable value. 

Steel scrap and conductor scrap are valued at es timated realizable value or book 

value, whichever is less. 

Spares which do not meet the recognition criteria as Property, Plant and Equipm ent, 

including spare parts whose cost is less than ~5,0 0 ,0 00 /- are recorded as inventories. 

Surplus materials as determined by the management are held for intended use and 

are included in the inventory. 

111e diminution in the value of obsolete, w1serviceable and surplus stores and 

spares is ascertained on review and provided for. 

2.10 Leases 

Lease is a conh·act that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 

a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 

asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the conh·act involves use of an identified 

assets, (ii) the cus tomer has subs tantially all the economic benefits froc se of 



the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the customer has the right to direct 

the use of the asset. 

i) As a Lessee 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use 

asset (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which 

it is a lessee, except for lease with a term of twelve months or less (i.e. short term 

leases) and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. For these short­

term and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Company 

recognizes the lease payments on straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease 

before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these 

options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

TI1e right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the amount 

of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made 

at or before the inception date of the lease along with any initial direct costs, 

restoration obligations and lease incentives received. 

Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated 

depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re­

measurement of the lease liability. The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine 

whether a ROU asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as 

described in the accounting policy 2.7 on "Impairment of non-financial assets". 

The lease liability is initially measured at present value of the lease payments that 

are not paid at that date. 

T11e interest cost on lease liability is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

unless eligible for capitalization as per accounting policy 2.6 on "Borrowing costs". 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the financial 

statements and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

ii) As a Lessor 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. 

a) Finance leases 

A lease t11at transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 

ownership of an asset is classified as a finance lease. 



Net investment in leased assets is recorded a t the lower of the fair value of the 

leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments as Lease 

Receivables under cunent and non-current other financial assets. 

The interest element of lease is accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

over the lease period based on a p attern reflecting a constant periodic rate of 

return on the net investment. 

b) Operating leases 

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Leases in which a 

significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 

lessor are classified as operating leases. 

Por operating leases, the asset is capitalized as properly, plant and equipment 

and deprecia ted over its economic life. Rental income from opera ting lease is 

recognized over the term of the arrangement. 

2.11 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets 

Classif ica ti on 

The Company classifies i ts financial assets in the following categories: 

• at amortised cost, 

• at fair value through other comprehensive income 

The classification depends on the following: 

• the entity's business model for managing the financia l asse ts and 

• the conh·actual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially a t fa ir value plus, in the case of financial 

assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost , if any, that 

are a th·ibutable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 



Subsequent measurement 

Debt Instruments at Amortised cost: Asse ts that are held for collection of 

conh·actual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 

and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that 

is subsequently m easured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the 

asset is derecognised or impaired . Interest income from these financial assets is 

included in finance income using the effective interest ra te method. 

Debt Instruments at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 

Assets tha t are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the 

financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal 

and interest, are measured a t fair value through other comprehensive income 

(FVOCI). 

De-recognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognized only when 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 

asse t, or 

Retains the conh·actual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but 

assumes a conh·actual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration 

received/ receivable is recognised in the s tatement of P ro fi t and Loss. 

Impairment of financial assets: 

For trade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind 

AS 109 Financial lnsh·uments, which requires exp ected life time losses to be 

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

company determines w hether there has been a significa nt increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month 

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is used to p rovide for impairment loss. l lowever, if 

credit r isk has increased significan tly, lifetime ECL is used . If, in a subsequent 

period, credit quality of the insh·ument improves su ch that there is no longer a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the enti ty reverts to 

recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 -month ECL. L 
~ 



Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or 

another financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial 

liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to 

the Company. 

The Company's financial liabilities include loans & borrowings, trade and other 

payables. 

Classification, initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that 

are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are 

classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Amortised cost is calculated 

by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

arc an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). Any difference between the 

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the ElR. 

Subsequent measurement 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or 

Loss w hen the liabilities are derecognised. 

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition of financial liability 

A financial liability is dcrecognised when the obligation under the liability is 

discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing liability is replaced by another 

from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 

liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is b·eated as 

the derecognition of the original liabili ty and the recognition of a new liabili ty. The 

difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 

extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including 

any non-cash assets h·ansfcrred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of 

Profit and Loss as other income or finance cos t. \ 

Offsetting of financial instruments ~ 



Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 

the Balance Sheet if there is a currently cnforcca ble legal r ight to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.12 Foreign Currency Translation 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the 

currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (' the 

functional currency'). The financial sta tements arc presented in Indian Rupees 

(Rupees o r ~ ), w hich is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

(b) Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rates 

prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are 

translated with reference to the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the Balance 

Sheet. Non-Monetary items denominated in foreign currency arc reported at the 

exchange rate ruling on the da te of ini tial recognition of the non-mo netary 

prepayment asset or deferred income liability, or the date tha t related item is 

recognized in the fin ancial sta tements, whichever is earlier. In case the h·ansaction is 

recognized in stages, then transaction date is established for each s tage. Exchange 

differences arising from foreign currency transla tion a re recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss. 

2.13 Income Tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of curren t and deferred tax. Tax is recognised 

in the Sta tement of Profit and Loss, except to the ex tent that it rela tes to items 

recognised directly in equity or o ther comprehensive incom e. In this case the tax is 

also recognised directly in equi ty or in o ther comprehens ive income. 

Current income tax 

The Current Tax is based on taxable p rofit fo r the yea r under the tax laws enacted 

and applicable to the reporting period in the country where the company operates 

and genera tes taxable income. 

Def erred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

of asse ts and liabilities in the company's financial statemen ts and the [ rresponding 
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tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the 

Balance Sheet method. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it 

is p robable that future taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be 

utilised . The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance 

Sheet date and reduced to the extent tha t it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be 

utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 

apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance 

Sheet date. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to 

offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax authority. 

2.14 Revenue 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a conh·act with a 

customer and excludes amounts colJccted on behalf of third parties. The Company 

recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. 

2.14.1 Revenue from Operations 

Transmission Income is accounted for based on orders issued by CERC u/ s 63 of 

Elech·icity Act 2003 for adoption of h·ansmission charges. /\.sat each reporting date, 

transmission income includes an accrual for services rendered to the customers but 

not yet billed i.e. Unbilled Revenue. 

The Transmission sys tem incentive / disincentive is accounted for based on 

certification of availability by the respective Regional Power Committees and in 

accordance with the Transmission Service Agreement (TSA) en tered between the 

Transmission Service Provider and long term Transmission Customers. Where 

certifica tion by RPCs is not available, incentive/ disincentive is accounted for on 

provisional basis as per estimate of ava ilability by the company and differences, if 

any, is accounted on certification by RPCs. 

2.14.2 Other Income 

Interest income is recognized , when no significant uncerta inty as to measurability or 

collectability exists, on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 



outstanding and the applica ble interest ra te, using the effective interest ra te method 

(EIR). 

Surcharge recoverable from b·ade receivables, liquida ted dam ages, warran ty claims 

and interest on advances to suppliers are recognized when no significan t uncertainty 

as to measurability and collectability exists. 

Scrap other than steel scrap & conductor scrap are accounted for as and when sold. 

Insurance claims a re accounted for based on certainty of realization. 

Revenue from rentals and opera ting leases is recognized on an accrual basis in 

accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement. 

2.15 Dividends 

Annual div idend dish·ibution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the 

period in which the div idends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim 

dividend pa id is recognised on approval by Board of Direc tors. Div idend payable 

and corresponding tax on div idend dis tribution is recognised directly in equi ty. 

2.16 Provisions and Contingencies 

a) Provisions 

Provisions a re recognised when the Company has a present obliga tion (legal or 

consh·uctive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits w ill be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value 

of m oney is material, provisions are discounted. Unwindin g of the discount is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are 

review ed a t each Balance Sheet date and arc adjusted to reflect the current bes t 

estima te. 

b) Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the ma nagement / 

independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet da te and a re 

adjus ted to reflect the current management estimate. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from 

past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­

occurrence of one or more uncerta in future events not w holly within the control of 

ilie Company o: ::::~ e nt obligation iliat arises from past even ts wy re it is eiilier 
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not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable 

estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is 

disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not 

recognised. 

2.17 Share capital and Other Equity 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity 

as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

Self-insurance reserve is created @ 0.12% p.a. on Gross Block of Property, Plant and 

Equipment except assets covered under insurance as at the end of the year by 

appropriation of current year profit to mitigate future losses from un-insured risks 

and for taking care of contingencies in future by procurement of towers and other 

transmission line materials including strengthening of towers and equipment of AC 

substation. The Reserve created as above is shown as "Self Insurance Reserve" under 

'Other Equity'. 

2.18 Prior Period Items 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the 

comparative amounts for prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the 

error occurred before the earliest period presented, by restating the opening 

statement of financial position. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year 

ath·ibutable to the shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding 

during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss fo r the year 

attributable to the shareholders and weighted average number of equity and 

potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the result would 

be anti-dilutive. 

2.20 Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Cash flows is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 

7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. L 
~ 



3. Critical Estimates and Judgments 

TI1e preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates 

which may significantly vary from the actual results. Management also needs to 

exercise judgment while applying the company's accounting policies. 

l11is note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of 

judgm ent or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially 

adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those 

originally assessed. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are: 

Useful life of property, plant and equipment 

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of 

factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other 

economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known teclmological 

advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected 

future cash flows from the asset. 

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of plant and 

equipmen t and a re adjusted prospectively, if appropria te. 

Provisions and contingencies 

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been 

made in accordance with Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets". The evalua tion of the likelihood of the contingent events has 

required best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to 

potential loss. Should circumstances change following unforeseeable developments, 

this likelihood could alter. 

Es timates and judgments are periodically evaluated. They a rc based on historical 

experience and oth er factors, including expectations of future events that may have a 

financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. 



Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19: 

In assessing the recoverability of trade receivables and unbilled revenue, the 

company has considered internal and external information up to the date of 

approval of these financial statements including credit reports and economic 

forecasts. /\s the company's revenue is based on CERC tariff order and falls under 

essential services and based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, 

the company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT fRANSMJSSION LBJ 

CFOR\IERI Y \ILDl"!'UR JCLR\T TRA'<'>~llt,">JO:-.. I 1\11 I I DJ 

CIN : U-HHOODL20loG01290075 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 
It i11 L11Al1s) 

rarticufors Note No As Al 3151 Much 2020 As At 31st March 2019 

ASSETS 

Non-<.. urrent Assets 

PrOJX'rty. Plant a nd &juipmt>nt ~ 7,5"7.9-l 7,195.1-l 

Gip1tal Work-in-Progr6s :; .:?.5\b7o.55 1,38,879.81 

Intangible As..;et-; Un,f..r De"' lopm••nt 2 J . ~78 . 77 585.2-l 

Other :-..on-Current As~'b z 1.161.52 5,2ll'l14 

2,(H,OS4 78 1,.51,943.:n 

Current Assets 

Fmanctal Assets 

Cash and Cash Ll.juivalents § ~ . 68 3.03 

3.68 3.03 

Total Assets 2,64,088.46 1,51,946.36 

EQUITY AND llABILffiES 

Equity 

Equity Sh,ue Capital ~ 211,933.00 1.00 

Other Equity lQ (0.18 (0.18) 

28.9;\2.82 0.82 

LlabiJities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings ll 208,225.bO 1.26. 977.52 

Other !'\on Curr.mt Fmancial l...iabih t:y !.? 58.62 7,945.78 

2,08,284.22 1,34,923.JO 

Current Liabilities 

Financial Lia bi liti~'S 

Other Current Finano.al Liab1lil) ll 26.309.27 16,567.84 

Other Current Llabilitic-; 1! 56215 454.40 

26,871.42 17,022.2-l 

Tot.ti Eouity and Liabilities 2,64,088.46 J,51,946.36 

The accompany1.11g Note> (l to 35) tonn an lnt.-waJ Part of Fuwncial Stat..menb 

As Per Our Report of Even Date 

For Jain ~th & Company, 
Chartered Accountants 

B1shnu Kant Agarwal 

Pct.rtner 

Mem. No. 053700 

Place : Kolkata 

Dat.- 01) 0 '-1 'J.o 'Z.<> 

For & On lkhaJf 0f Tht> &-,,,rJ of Dm;!Ctor. 

(RKi& 
Chairman 

DIN-02018931 

Place : 

l Datt> : 

~ 
(N.LDhar) 

CFO 

Place : Knlk.1 ta 

Date : 01 . o<,.202.0 

Director 

DIN-07::159191 

Guri:aon 

01. oc.. 2010 

Plaet• · Gurgaun 

Date : 0 I. O(,,. 202.0 



POWERGRID MEDJNIPURJEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY \fE.Ol"-IPUR JEER AT TRA '-S\115510 I l\11TFOI 

CIN: U40300DL2016GOl290075 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020 
(t i11 Lal.J1s) 

Particulars Note No. 
For the year e nded 31st For the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 March,2019 

Rf.'venue From Operalmn~ - -
Other lm.onw )~ -
Tolal lnLome - -
EXPENSES 

Finance C<'Sts l 6 - -
Depreciation and Am,>rtization E>.pet'L'-t' 17 - -
Other Expenses 18 - -
Total Expenses - -
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax -

Tax Experu.c: 

Current Tax - -

DefPTTed Tax -
-

Profit (Loss) for the Period - -
Other Compreheru.ive Income -
Total Com prehensive Income for the pericx1 -
Earning~ pt!r Equity Share (Par Value' 10 eal·h) 

Ba~ ic (f) - -
Dilu tl'd (t) -

The accompanying Noll'S (I to 35) form an Intf.'gral Part of Financial Statl'ml'nts 

AQ Pe r Our Rl•port of Even Date 

~~ 
Bishnu Kanl Agarwal 

Partner 

Mcm. No. 053700 

Plau:!: Kulkata 

Date: 0Jl(')6)~ ~ 

"·It-'"""=" .,, °'"""'' 

(R. K. Chauhan) 

Oiairman 

DIN-02018931 

Place : G urgaon 

~ (K.S.R Murty) 

Director 

DIN-07359191 

A~: 
Date : 01.0C. · !2.02C 

CFO 

Pl.i l~ . Kolk<lt.i 

Date : e1. O(.. ,2.02.~ 

('\ df> · ~0 
o \ 

·na1 Shrivas ~ 

Company Sccrctary 

Pl.icl' : Gurgaon 

Date: O I . OC. . 202.(l 



POWER GRID Medinipur Jeerat Transmission Limited 
(FORMl:KI \' Ml:DINIPlJR JE[RATTRAN5 "11SSION UMITEDI 

Statement of Cash Flow for the Year Ended 31st March 2020 
( ( 111 L 11 1./1 ~ ) 

for the Yea r For the Year 

Particul.in; l\ote End ed 31s t March Ended 31s t 

2020 March 2019 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERA TlNG ACTIVITIES 

B 

c 

D 

E 

F 

Net Profit / (Loss) &!fort> Tax {!ncluJmg Rl'gularatory Dcf<!rr,11 

Account Balances) 

Opcrtating Profit / (Lo99} before Working Capital Changes 

Cash G€'ne rat<.>d From Ope rati on_~ 000 0.00 

Net Cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities 0.00 0.00 

CASH FLOW FROM TNVF.STING ACTTVmES 

Property. Plant & Eqwpments, Capital Work in Progres!> and 
(1,02,917 26) (J.28.177.31) 

Intangible Assets Under Development 

Adjustments For Otanges in Assets an d liabtJitk's b.OSJ.lH 26,458.88 

Ntt Cash used in Investing Activities (96,833.621 (1,01,718.43) 

CASH FLOW FROM FJNANCINC ACTIVmES 

Interest on Loan 03 ~ ~ 1. 50) 

Equity 1ssul'd during tht> year 28.'·H2.00 

Interest on Lease Liability (4.31) 

Proc<.><.>ds from Loon 81.2-18.08 1,01,720.7-1 

Net Cash From Financing Activities 96,834.27 1,01,720.74 

Nd Clw.n5c in Cuh and Cash Equivalents (.A+B+q 0.65 2.31 

Cash and Cash Equivale nts (Opening Balance) 8 3.03 0.72 

Clsh and Cllsh Equivalents (O o~ m ~ B.Uance) (D+E) 8 3.68 3.0..1 

The acrompanying Notes (1 to 35) form at1 lntl!gral Part of Financial Stah.'mrots 

Further Notes : 

1. Cash &: Cash 4..'qU1valcnts conslSt ,,f 1-aLlncl'"'i with b.Jnk in curri.'nt accounl 

2. PrCVlOUS yror figures have be.)n re-gmup po..'CI / n."-arrangcd whcn't.'Vc r rcqwrcJ 

As Per Our Rcpurt of Ewn 0 dh: 

For Jam Seth &. Compru1y, 

Ola.rtered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No 002069W 

Bishnu Kant Agarwa l 

Partner 

Mem. No. 053700 

Place : Kolkata 

Date : C:> I \ 0 1. \ '}.,.() ""-

fo< • ~ ITh< ""''d ol D" ~ 

(R. K. Cha uhall) (KSR Murty) 

Chillrman Director 

DlN-02018931 DIN..()7359191 

J;2; 
CFO 

Plac.- : KolkatJ 

( nna!Shnv 

Company Seer 

Plac<! : Gurgaon 

. ~ · ,j$}>" 

Date : 01.oC:..2.<no O a t ~ : a I · 0 ~ . '2.Cl'2.0 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MJ:.lJINIPUR -JH.RAT fRA."'JSMISSJON LIMITED) 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2020 
A. Equity Share Capital 

(t i11 Li1kl1s) 

As at 1st April, 2019 1.00 

Otanges in equity share capital 28,912.00 

As at 31st March, 2020 28,933.00 

As at 1st April, 2018 1.00 

Changes in equity share carital -
As at 31st March, 2019 l .00 

B. Other Equity 

(t i11 Lakhs) 

Reserves and Surplus 
Total 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at 1st April,2019 (0.18) (0.18) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - -

Balance at 31st March, 2020 (0.18) (0.18) 

(t in Lakhs) 

Reserves and Surplus 

Retained Earnings 
Total 

Balance at 1st April,2018 (0.18) (0.18) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Balance at 31st March, 2019 {0.18) (0.18) 

The accompanying Notes (1 to 35) form an Integral Part of Financial Statements 

Refer to Note 10 for Nature & Movement of Other Equity. 

As per our report of even date 

For & on behalf of 

Jain Seth & Company 

Chartered Accountant 

FRN-002069W 

~~ 
Bishnu Kant Agarwal 

Partner 

M.No. 053700 

Pake: Kolkata 

Date: 011~~)<'\-'o~ 

For and on behalf of Board Of Directors 

(R. K. Chauhan) 

Chairman 

DIN-02018931 

Place: Kolkata 

Date : l}f . tt(',..2.020 

~r , 

~ 
Director 

DIN-07359191 

Place : Gurgaon 

Date: 61 ·0(:..'202.0 



POWER GRID MEDINIPUR JEERA T TRANSMISSION LTD 

(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRA!\SMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 4/Property, Plant and Equipment 

Cost 

Initial 

recognition/ 
Adjustment 

Particulars As at 1st Reclassificatio Additions 
Disposal during the 

April, 2019 n on account during 

of adoption the year 
year 

of Ind AS 116 

Land 

Freehold 5,866.40 351.61 - -
Leasehold Land 1,366.75 (1,366.75) 

Furniture Fixtures 9.36 - - -

Workshop & Testing 
- 5.52 - -

Equi pments 

Office equipment 1.59 4.89 - -

ROU Assets 

ROU Assets - Leasehold V 25.37 - - -
Total 7,244.10 58.62 362.02 - -

Cost 

Particulars As at 1st Additions during the 
Adjustment 

April, 2018 year 
Disposal during the 

year 

Land 

Freehold Land - 5866..JO - -

Leasehold Land 1,366.75 - - -

Furniture Fixtures 8.25 1.11 - -
Office equipment - 1.59 - -

Total 1,375.00 5869.10 - -

Further Note -

As a t 31st As at 1st 

March , 2020 April, 2019 

6,218.01 -
- 47.90 

9.36 0.97 

5.52 

6.48 0.09 

-

1,425.37 

7,664.74 48.96 

As at 31st As at 1st 

March 2019 April, 2018 

5,866.40 -

1,366.75 2.25 

9.36 0.40 

1.59 -

7,244.10 2.65 

(\' i11 Lnkhs) 

Accumulated depreciation Net Book Value 

Reclassific 

ation on Additions Adjustment 
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 

account of during the Disposal duringthe 
March , 2020 March, 2020 March 2019 

adoption year year 

of Ind AS 

116 

- - - - 6,218.01 5,866.40 

(47.90) - - 1,318.85 

0.59 - - 1.56 7.80 8.39 

0.25 - - 0.25 5.27 -

0.37 - - 0.46 6.02 1.50 

47.90 46.63 - - 94.53 1,330.8.J -

- 47.84 - - % .80 7,567.94 7,195.14 

(\' i11 Lnk/is) 

Accumulated depreciation !\et Book Value 

Additions during the Sale/ 
Adjustment 

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 

year Disposal 
during the 

March 2019 March 2019 March, 2018 
year 

- - - - 5,866.40 -
45.65 - - -17.90 1,318.85 1,364.50 

0.57 - - 0.97 8.39 7.85 

0.09 - - 0.09 1.50 -

46.31 - - 48.96 7,195.14 1,372.35 

a) 111e Company owns 66.47 hectare (Previous Year 66..17 hectare) of land amounting t o~ 7643.38 Lakhs (Previous Year 7233.15 Lakhs) out of which 32.88 hecta re (Previous Year 32.88 hectare) of land amounting t o~ 6218.01 Lakhs 

(Previous Year ~ 5866..10 L.1khs) has been classified as freehold land based on available documentation and 33.59 hectare (Previous Year 33.59 hectare) of ROU Asset- leasehold land amounting t o~ 1425.37 Lakhs (In Previous 

Year~ 1366.75 Lakhs Lease hold land) based on a,·ailable documentation. 

b) rrechold land acquired by the company includes 32.88 hectare (Previous Year 32.88 hectare) amow1ting to ~6218.0 1 Lakhs (Previous Year ~5866.40 Lakhs) in respect of which conveyance deed in favour of the 

company is pending and 32.88 hectare (Previous Year 32.88 hectare) amounting to ~ 62 1 8.01 Lakhs (Previous Year ~ 5866.40 Lakhs) in respect of land acquired by the company fo! h ich m utation in revenue 

records is pend ing. 

~ 



POWER GRID MEDI1'IPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(fORMbltLY MEDINll'UR-JEERATTRANSMISSION I IMITFD) 

Note 5/Capital Work in Progress 

P.uticu1us 

Pl•nl &. Equipments (including •.ssoci•ted civil worl..s) 

•) Tran'5 m1.ss1on 

b) c;un.St.rnon 

farenditurt> r~nding Al10C'•tion 

f\p('nlf1lure Durmf, Construction Period (f\.et) (:\ote 19) 

Sub roul 

Constru('t1on Stores 

Cund 1 ot•1 

Particulars 

Pl•nl & Equipments (including .i.ssocfatt>d dvil works) 

d} Tr.msm1ss1on 

b) Sub-Station 

hpt>nditu~ Pending Alloc•tion 

Ex~~_l_!_~r~ _ Q_l:J~llg Cor..structlon Period (~et) {l'\ot~ 1~ 

Sub Totill 

Construcuon Stores 

Gund rota.I 

As.at 1st April Additions during 

2019 the yur 

56,615.15 33,933.3' 

2.6~2.83 28,568.71 

14,743.15 18,386.27 

73,991.13 80,888.32 

04.888.0S 3',l08A2 

l,JS,s1q.81 1,14,996.74 

As .itlst April Additions during 

2018 the yNr 

1,82019 54.794.96 

2,632.83 

4.657.39 10,085.76 

6,477.58 67,513.55 

10,632.95 5-1,255.73 

17,110.53 1,21,769.28 

Note 5/Capital Work in Progress (Details of Construction Stores) 
(•\t <OSI) 

Cosl:ruction Stores 

Towers 

Conductors 

Other Line \tatenals 

!>uh-51.ihon Equ1pmems 

High \'olt.ige Direct Current (HVOC) Eqpnts 

r.u1iculus 

ln1f1ed Lotld Despatch & CommunKdt1on(ULIX..) \ldten•lt; 

Tt>f('(om .\t,nerwls 

Other> 

TOTAL 

Construction Stores include: 

i)~t.teri•I in Transit 

Sutt-Sta11on Equ1pmt"l'lts 

Tol•l 

~hteriiil with Contnctors 

To\,'?'r~ 

Cor.ductors 

Other Lme .\lat1.•nals 

'tu~Sta t 1on F.qu1pmt>nts 

H1~h Vohdge Direct Current (HVOC) Eqpnts 

Unifi~ Lo.11d Despatch & Commumcatton(L!LDC) \ 1,llcnals 

Telecom \latenals 

Others 

Tot.ti 

Grand Tot.ii 

Adjustmenl.s 

A djustments 

(( 111 Lnk/1s) 

C•pi t;ilis~d during I As •l 31st Much. 

the ye.u 2020 

90,548 -19 

31.201.';4 

33,129.42 

1,54.879.45 

98,997.10 

2,53.876.55 

(t i11 Lakl1s) 

Capitalisrd during I As at 31st March, 

th• yor 2019 

As"'' 31st M•n·h , 

2020 

29,749.Tt 

3',612.02 

7,716.35 

23,bOl.76 

14.42 

1,197.7-1 

2.074 76 

30.28 

98,997.10 

2.20'! s.i 

2,209.Sl 

2Q,:'4Q.77 

3'.012.02 

7,716 35 

21,,91 92 

14 -12 

1,197.74 

2,0iU6 

~ 
96,787.26 

98.997.10 

56,61515 

2,632.83 

14,743.1 5 

73,991.13 

64,888.68 

1.38,879.81 

(l 111 Lnk11s) 

As .1t 31st March 

2019 

28.421.05 

12.762.08 

5.669.36 

14,314.14 

1%.69 

3,525.36 

64.888.68 

l.6"0.00 

1J!%.OO 

28.421.05 

12.7•2.08 

5.669.~ 

12.&18.14 

196.69 

3,525.36 

63,192.68 

64,888.68 

~ 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 6/INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

Particulars 
As at 1st April Additions d uring 

2019 the year 

Right of Way-Afforestation expenses 585.24 893.53 

Total 585.24 893.53 

Particulars 
As at 1st April Additions during 

2018 the year 

Right of Way-Afforestation expenses - 585.24 

Total - 585.24 

Adjustments 

Adjustments 

( ~ in Lakhs) 

Capitalised during As at 31st March, 

the year 2020 

1,478.77 

-

- - 1,478.77 

( ~ in Lakhs) 

Capitalised during As at 31st March , 

the year 2019 

585.24 

- - 585.24 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note- 7 /Other Non-Current Assets 

(Unsecured considered Good unless otherwise stated) 

Advances for Capital Expenditure 

Against Bank Guarantees 

Others * 

Total 

* Advance against Land 

Particulars 

( ~ i n Lakhs) 

As at 31st March As at 31st 

2020 March 2019 

1,067.65 

93.87 

1,161.52 

L 
~ 

5,189.27 

93.87 

5,283.14 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 8/Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars 

Balance with Banks 

-In Current accow1ts 

Total 

As at 31st 

March 2020 

3.68 

3.68 

(~ in Lakhs) 

As at 31st 

March 2019 

3.03 

3.03 

~ 



POWER GRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 

(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 9/Equity Share capital 

Equity Share Capital 

Authorised 

Particulars 

600000000 (Previous year 1000000) equity share of ~ 10/- each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

289330000 (Previous Year 10000) equity shares of ~ 10/ - each fully paid up 

Total 

Further Notes: 

Particulars 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Shares Issued during the year 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 

2) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10/- per share. 

As at 31st March , 2020 

60,000.00 

28,933.00 

28,933.00 

For the year ended 31st March , 

2020 

No. of Shares ~ in Lakhs 

10,000 1.00 

2893,20,000 28,932.00 

2893,30,000 28933.00 

(?' i11 Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, 2019 

100.00 

1.00 

1.00 

For the year ended 31st March, 

2019 

No. of Shares ~in Lakhs 

10,000 1.00 

- -
10,000 1.00 

3) The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive d ividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their shareholding at meetings of the 

Shareholders. 

4) Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Company :-

Particulars 
As at 31st March , 2020 As at 31st March, 2019 

No. of Shares I % of holding No. of Shares I <Yo of holding 

i) Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (Holding Company)* 289330000 I 100% 10000 I 100% 

*Out of 289330000 Equity shares (Previous year 1000,0~ 

r~H:J·~- - ~ 
\~ Kol~ ?'\l 
W ~at */.' 

~
~ ...,, 

'{eo ~ 
• ,..{.'tf A ~rn \\~<{f/ 

~ 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 10/0ther Equity 

Reserve & Surplus 

As per last balance sheet 

Add: Additions 

Particulars 

Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 

Closing Balance 

Total 

(0.18) 

-

-
--

(~ in Lakhs) 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2020 March 2019 

(0.18) 

(0.18) (0.18) 

(0.18) (0.18) 

~ 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 

(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 11/Borrowings 

Term Loan From Others 

Rupee Loans (Unsecured) 

Description 

Loan From M/s Power Grid Corp. of India Ltd. (Holdi11g Co.) 

Total 

Further Note -

As at 31st March, 

2020 

2,08,225.60 

2,08,225.60 

(~ in Lakhs) 

As at 31st 

March 2019 

1,26,977.52 

1,26,977.52 

Inter Corporate Loan is provided by the Holding Company on cost to cost basis carrying rnterest rate ranging from 6.35% To 8.36% 

and the loan is repayable generally over a Period of 4 to 14 Year starting from 27-Sep-2022. 

Refer note number 29 for related Party transactions. 

~ 

1$~~~ct:~ ''":> () 

\i .. * Kol ? '~. 'f ;~ 
"'.'-"c' I ~"/> w ~.!:_Acer...:.;':-/' 

-...:-~ -·· · 

~ 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 

(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 12/0ther Non Current Financial Liability 

Particulars 

Others 

Deposits/Retention money from contractors and others. 

Lease Liability ROU Assets 

Total 

Further Note -

(t in Lakhs) 

As at 31st As at 31st March 

March , 2020 2019 

7,945.78 

58.62 

58.62 7,945.78 

Disclosure with regard to Micro and Small Enterprises as required under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006" is given in Note 28 

l-



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 

(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 13/0ther Current Financial Liability 

Particulars 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings from 

Related Parties ** - M / s Power Grid Corp. of India Ltd. 

Others 

Dues for Capital Expenditure 

Deposits/ Retention money from contractors and others. 

Related parties ** - M/ s Power Grid Corp. of India Ltd. 

Lease Liabilty 

Total 

Further Note -

As at 31st 

March 2020 

2,879.87 

2,879.87 

7,927.70 

14,219.59 

1,277.80 

4.31 

23,429.40 

26,309.27 

(~ in Laklts) 

As at 31st March 

2019 

824.26 

824.26 

5,119.67 

7,575.52 

3,048.39 

15,743.58 

16,567.84 

Disclosure with regard to Micro and Small Enterprises as required under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006" is given in Note 28 

***Refer note number 29 for related Party transactions. 

~ 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 

(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 14/0ther current liabilities 
(t in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2020 March 2019 

Statutory Dues 562.15 454.40 

Total 562.15 454.40 

~
~~~ 
/;80~ . 0 

/\g Kol ~ ta ~~ 
~ ,,.~ 

;.. ~., 

~~ ~--



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRAN SMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 15/0ther Income 

Interest from Advances to Contractors 

Miscellaneous income 

Particulars 

Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction(Net)-Note 19 

Total 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March 2020 

314.83 

0.03 

314.86 

314.86 

( ~ in Lakhs) 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March 2019 

729.97 

729.97 

729.97 

~ 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR-JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 16/Finance Costs 

Particulars 

Interest on Loan From Holding Co. (M/ s Power Grid Corp. of India Ltd.)* 

Interest on Lease liability 

Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction (Net) - Note 19 

Total 

***Refer note number 29 for rela ted Party transactions. 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March 2020 

13,341.50 

4.31 

13,345.81 

13,345.81 

L 
~ 

(f in Lakhs) 

For the year 

ended 31st March 

2019 

4,705.21 

4,705.21 

4,705.21 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIM ITED) 

Nate 17 /Depreciation and amortization expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments 

Depreciation on ROU Assets 

Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction (Net) - Note 19 

Total 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March 2020 

1.21 

46.63 

47.84 

47.84 

~ 
-< 

( ~ in Laklzs) 

For the year 

end ed 31st March 

2019 

46.31 

46.31 

46.31 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR-JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 18/0ther expenses 

Particulars 

Other Expenses 

Power Charges 

Legal Expenses 

Professional charges 

Consultancy expenses 

Payments to Statutory Auditors 

Audit Fees 

Printing & Stationary 

CERC Petition Charges 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Rates and taxes 

Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction (Net) - Note 19 

Total 

~ 
~@

\ 
.... \) 

i ~ Kol .* l 
\ g11 

(!. ~ 'I 
'Kv/.,: <f 1 

~.,. d ~c.(\~.:? 
~~~ 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March 2020 

0.21 

319.99 

4,955.66 

0.82 

5.00 

0.84 

24.96 

5,307.48 

5,307.48 

~ 

( ~ in Lakhs) 

furili e ~ar 

ended31~ 

Marrh2ITT9 

0.37 

0.78 

6,057.20 

0.30 

0.01 

5.00 

0.02 

0.53 

6,064.21 

6,064.21 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 19/ Expenditure during Construction (Net) 

Particulars 

Other Expenses 

Power Charges 

Legal Expenses 

Professional charges 

Consultancy expenses 

Payment to Statutory Auditors 

Audit Fees 

Printing & Stationary 

CERC Petition Charges 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Ra tcs and taxes 

Total 

Depreciation/ Amortisation 

Depreciation on Plant,Property & Equipments 

Total 

Finance Costs 

Indian Banks, Fin Inst. & Coprorations/ Related Party 

Interest on Lease Liability 

Total 

Less: Other Income 

Miscellaneous income 

Interest from Advance To Contractors 

Total 

Grand Total 

For the year 

ended 31st 

March 2020 

0.21 

319.99 

4,955.66 

0.82 

5.00 

0.84 

24.96 

5,307.48 

47.84 

47.84 

13,341.50 

4.31 

13,345.81 

0.03 

314.83 

314.86 

18,386.27 

( ~ in Lakhs) 

For the year 

ended 31st March 

2019 

0.37 

0.78 

6,057.20 

0.30 

0.01 

5.00 

0.02 

0.53 

6,064.21 

46.31 

46.31 

4,705.21 

4,705.21 

729.97 

729.97 ~ 
10,085.76 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDIN IPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 20/ Employee Benefit Obligations 

The Company does not have any permanent employees. The personnel working for the company are from holding company on secondment basis and are working on time 

share basis. The employee cost (including retirement benefits such as Gratuity, Leave encashment, post-retirement benefits etc.) in respect of personnel working for the 

company are paid by holding company and holding company is raising the invoice to the Subsidiary company towards Consultancy charges. 

Since there are no employees in the company, the obligation as per Ind AS 19 " Employee Benefits" does not arise. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary for any 

retirement benefit like gratuity, leave salary, pension etc., in the books of the company. 

L 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(l'O RMERLY MEDINIPUR-J EERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 21/ fair Value Measurements ('t i11 Lnklis) 

Financial instnuncnts by category 
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 

Amortised Cost Amortised cost 

Fin ancial Assets 

C.1sh & Cash Equivalents 3.68 3.03 

Tutal Financial Assets 3.68 3.03 

Financial Liabilities 

llorrowings 2,11, 105..17 1,27,801.78 

Other Financial I iabllities 

Non Current 58.62 7,945.78 

Current 23,429.·IO 15,7·13.58 

Total Financial U.tbilities 2,34,593.49 1,51 ,491.14 

(i) Fair Va lue llierarchy 

Tius section explams lhe judgements and estimates made in determin111g the fair valu<!S of Ute fina ncial instruments that are measured al 

amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed 1n the financia l slalcmen ts. 7o provid e an ind ication about lhe reliability of the inputs 

used 111 determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the U1ree levels p rescribed under the accounting 

s tandard . An explanation of each level follows w1derncath lhc table. 

(l ;,, Lflklrs! 

Assets n11d linbi/1ties w liic/1 nre 

I 
At 31 March I At 31 March 2019 111ens11retl nt 11111ort ised cost for 10/lic/1 Level 

l/nir vn /11es are disclosed 
2020 

Financia l Assets 3.68 3.03 

Total financial Assets 3.68 I 3.03 

Fin•nci•I Li•bili ties 

Borrowings 2 2,09, 1 S.I 63 1,26,353.51 

Deposits/ Relenhon money from 
2 - 7,945.78 

contractors and others. 

rotal Fina ncial Liabilities 2,09,154.63 1,34,299.29 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financia l instruments measured using quoted pric<!S. This mcludcs listed equity which arc traded 111 lhc 

stock exchanr,cs is valued using the closing price as al th(• reporting period . 

Level 2: 1hc fair value of financial instruments thal arc not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, ovcr-lhc-countcr 

derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely aslilllc as possible on cnllly­

specific eshmatcs. If all significant inputs rc4uired to fair value an instrument arc observable, the instrument is mcludcd in level 2. 

Level J: If one or more of the significant in puts is not based on observable market data, the 111slrumenl 1s mcluded 111lcvel3. 111is is the cast• for 

unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and mdcmmfication asst·l includ[\d in level 3. 

"!here arc no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.The company's policy is to rccognr>l' transfers into and transfers out of fair value 

hierarchy levels as at the end of ilic reporting period. 

(ii) V•luatio n technique used to determine fair value 

Specific val ua tion lL'C'hniqucs used to value financial ins t ruments include: 

•the fa ir va lue of the financial ins truments is determined using discounted cash Oow analysis. 

All of lhc rcsultmp, fa ir value estimatt'S arc included in level 2 

(iii) Fair Value of Financia l A.sets and Liabilit ies meas u red •t A mortis ed Cost (l i11 Lak/is) 

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 

Carrying 
Fair v.-.luc 

Carrying 
f'airvalue 

amount amount 

Fi na nci• I Assets 3.68 3.68 3.03 3.03 

Total Fina ncial Assets 3.68 3.68 3.03 3.03 

Financia l Liabilities 

Borrowings 2,11,105..17 2,09,154.63 1,27,801.78 1,26,353.51 

Deposits/ Relent ion money from - - 7,945.78 7,945.78 
contractors and oth<.'rs. 

Tot•l l'in•ncia l Liabi lities 2,11,105.47 2,09,154.63 1,35,747.56 1,34,299.29 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash c4u ivalents, other current Financial Ass<·ts "'d o ther current fina ncial liab1hhcs arc con,,1dcred to b<.· 

the same as their fair values, due to their shorl-lerm na lure.lltc fair va lues of nun-current borrowings arc based on discounted cash flows using 

u current borrowing rate. Tiiey ar ~ clnssified as level 2 fa ir val ues in the fair va lue hierarchy since signi fican t inp uts required to fair v.ilue an 

111s trunwnt a re ubservableFor fin ial assets and lrnbilities tha t arc measured at fair value, the currying a mou nts arl' c1..1ual to the foir values. 



POWER GRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDI NIPUR -JEER AT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 2'2/ Earnings Per Share 

{a) Basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company 31-Mar-2020 

Total Basic and Diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders 

of the company from Continuing Operations 

{b) Reconciliation of earnings used as numerator in calculating earnings per 
31-Mar-2020 

share 

Total Earnings attributable to the equity holders of the company 

(c)Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator 31-Mar-2020 

-

-

Weighted average number of equi ty shares used as the denominator in 
289330000 

calculating basic earnings pe r share 

(in l') 

31-Mar-2019 

-

(f i11 Laklzs) 

31-Mar-2019 

-

(No. of Shares) 

31-Mar-2019 

10000 



POWERGRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT TRANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 23/ Capital Management 

Risk Management 

The company's objectives when managing capital are to 

• maximize the Shareholder Value 

• safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern 

• maintain an optimal capital sb"ucture to reduce the cost of capital. 

For the purpose of the company's capital management, equity capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable 

to the equity holders of the company. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic 

conditions. To maintain or adjust the capita l structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, regulate investments in 

new projects, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

The debt - equity ratio of the Company was as follows: 

(~ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31-Mar-2020 31-Mar-2019 

Long Term Debt 2,08,225.60 1,26,977.52 

Equity 28,932.82 0.82 

Long Term Debt to Equity Ratio 88:12 100:0 

~~~~ 
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POWER GRID MEDINIPUR JEERAT TRANSMISSION LTD 
(FORMERLY MEDINIPUR -JEERAT T RANSMISSION LIMITED) 

Note 24/ Financial Risk Management 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings denomina ted in Indian rupees, and other paya bles. The main 

purpose of these financia l lictbililies is to finance the Company's capital investments and opera lions. 

The Compa ny's activities expose it to the fo llowing financia l risks, namely, 

a) Credit risk, 

b) Liquidity risk, 

c) Markel risk. 

This note presents information regarding the company's exposure, objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks. 

The management of fincmcia l risks by the Company is summarized below: -

(A) Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents carried a t amortised cost. 

ii) Credit Risk Ma11age111e11t 

Credit risk is the risk that counlerparty will not meet its obligations u nder a financia l ins trument or customer cont ract, leading lo a financial loss. 

A default on a financial asset is w hen the counterparty fa ils to make contractual payments within 3 years of w hen they fall due. This definition of 

default is determined considering the business envi ronment in which the Company operates and other macro-economic factors. 

Assets a rc written-off when there is no reasonable expecta tion of recovery, such as debtor declaring bankruptcy or failing lo engage in a 

repayment plan with the company . Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues lo engage in enforcement activity 

to a llempl to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries a rc made, these a rc recognized in the statement of profi t and loss. 

The Company primarily prov ides transmission facilities to inter-sta te transmission service customers (DlCs) comprisine mainly state utilit ies 

owned by Sta te Governments. CERC tariff regula tions a llows payment against monthly bills towards tra nsmission charees within a period of 45 

days from the dale of the bill and levy of charge on delayed payment beyond ·15 days. A graded rebc1te is provided by the company for payment 

made within -15 days. 

O ther Financia l Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

rite Company held cash and cash equivalents clS on 31st March, 2020 o f~ 3.68/- Lakhs (Previous year: ~ 3.03/- Lakhs). The cash and cash 

equivalents arc held with public sector banks and high rated priva te sector banks and do not have c1ny significant credit risk. 

(i)Exposure to credit risk 

l"hc ca rrying amount o f financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure lo cred it risk a t the reporting da te 

\.Vcl~: 

Rs in Likhs 

Particulars 31'
1 

March, 2020 31'
1 

March, 2019 

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 

months Expected Credi t Losses (ECL) 

Cash and cash equivalents 3.68 3.03 

Total 3.68 3.03 



Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses 

The Compa ny has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low. At 

initial recognition, financia l assets are considered as having negligible cred it risk and the risk has not increased from initial recognition. 

f hercforc, expected credit loss p rovision is not required . 

(I.I) Liquidity Risk 

Liquid ity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 

facilities to meet obligat ions w hen due. The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. TI1e Company has 

entered into an agreement with the holding company for providing funds for the completion of the project 

Management monitors rolling forecas ts of the Company's liquidity position comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below and cash and 

cash equivalents on tlw basis of expected cash flows. 

The Company depends on both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working capital and to fund capital expenditure. 

(i) Financing Arrangements 

The company had access to the borrowing facilities with the Parent Company as per Agreement a t the end of the reporting period . 

(i i) Maturities of Financial liabilities 

·1 he tables below analyse The company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non­

deriva tive financial liabilities 

rhe amounts d isclosed in the table are the contractua l undiscounted cash flows. 

Contractual Maturities of Financia l Liabilities: 

31-Mar-20 

Non-Derivatives 

Borrowings 

Other Financia l Liabilities 

Tota l Non-Derivative Liabilities 

31-Mar-19 

Non-derivatives 

Borrowings 

Other Financia l Liabilities 

Total Non-Derivative Liabilities 

(C) Market risk 

Within 1 Year 

15,236.91 

23,488.02 

38,724.93 

11,005.97 

23,689.36 

34,695.33 

Between 1 and 

2 years 

16,008.22 

16,008.22 

10,469.87 

10,469.87 

Between 2 and 5 
Beyond 5 Years 

years 

9..J , 15 1.60 2,17,276.99 

94,151.60 2,17,276.99 

38,192.63 1,60,4 30.87 

38,192.63 1,60,430.87 

(~ i11 Lnk/1s) 

Total 

3,42,673.72 

23,-188.02 

3,66,161.74 

2,20,099.3<1 

23,689.36 

2,43,788.70 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financi11 l instrument will fluctua te because of changes in m.i rket prices . Market 

risk comprises fo llowing types of risk: 

i. Currency risk 

ii.Interest ra te risk 

i) Currency risk 

As on Reporting date the Company does not have any exposure to currency risk in respect of foreign currency denominated loans and 

borrowings. The company is exposed to cu rrency risk mainly due to procurement o f goods and services. 

ii) Interest rate risk 

The Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk arising from long term borrowings s ince all the borrowings a rc with fixed interest rates. 



Note 25. 

a) The Company owns 66.47 hectare (Previous Year 66.47 hectare) of land amounting to ~7643.38 

Lakhs (Previous Year U233.15 Lakhs) out of which 32.88 hectare (Previous Year 32.88 hectare) 

of land amounting to ~6218.0 I Lakhs (Previous Year~5866.40 Lakhs) has been classified as 

freehold land based on available documentation and 33.59 hectare (Previous Year 33.59 

hectare) of land amounting to U425.37 Lakhs (Previous Year~ 1366.75 Lakhs) leasehold land 

based on available documentation. 

b) Freehold land acquired by the company includes 32.88 hectare (Previous Year 32.88 hectare) 

amounting to ~6218.0 I Lakhs (Previous Year ~5866.4 0 Lakhs) in respect of which conveyance 

deed in favour of the company is pending and 32.88 hectare (Previous Year 32.88hectare) 

amounting to %218.0 I Lakhs (Previous Year ~5 866.40 Lakhs) in respec t of land acquired by the 

company for which muta tion in revenue records is pending. 

Note 26. 

Balances of Advances for Capital Expenditure Shown under O ther Non-Current Assets (Note-7) & 

Dues for Capital Expenditure Shown under Other Current financial Liabilities (Note-13) include 

ba lances subject to confirmation/ reconciliation and consequential adjustments if any. However 

reconcilia tions are carried out on ongoing basis and Balance Confirmation are carried out on 

balances as on 31stMarch 2020. 

Note 27. 

Borrowing Cost o f~ 13341.50/-Lakhs (Previous Year ~4705 . 21/- Lakhs) has been adjusted in the 

Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) / Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)as per Ind AS 23-

"Borrowing Costs". 

Note 28. 

Based on information ava ilable with the company, there are No Suppliers/Service providers who are 

registered as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprise under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act,2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). Information in respect of Micro, Small or Medium 

Enterprise as required by MSMED ./\ct, 2006 is given as under: 

Sr. 
Particulars 

Current Previous 

No. Year Year 

lo 

1 
Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 



The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of sec tion 16 of 

2 lhe MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment 
Nil Nil 

made to the supplier beyond Lhe appointed day dur ing each 

accounling year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 

3 making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
Nil Nil 

appointed day during the year) put without adding the interesl 

specified under MSMED Act, 2006 

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid a t the end 
Nil Nil 

of each accounting year. 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 

5 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as 

above are ac tually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of Nil Nil 

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of Lhe 

MSMED Act 2006 



Note 29: Related Party Transactions 

a) Holding Co. 

Proportion of O wnership 

Interest 

Place of 
31st M arch, 

31st March, 

Name of entity business/country of 2019 

incorporation 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limite d India 

b) List of f ellow Subsidiaries Co. (Subsidiary Co. of Holding Co.) 

Name of entity Place of 

business/country 

of incorporation 

PowergridVizag Transmission Limited India 

Powergrid NM Transmission Limited Ind ia 

PowergridUnchaha r Transmission Limited India 

Powergrid Kala Amb Transmission Limited India 

Powergrid Jabalp ur Transmiss ion Limited India 

Powergrid Warora Transmission Limited Ind ia 

PowergridParli Transmission Li mited India 

Powergrid So uthern Interconnector Transmission System 
Ind ia 

Limited 

Powergrid Vemagiri Transmission Limited India 

PowergridMithilanchal Transmission Limited (erstwhile 
India 

ERSS XX I Transmission Limited) 

Powergrid Varanasi Tra nsmiss ion System 
lndia 

Limited(erstwhile WR-NR Power Transmission Limited) 

PowergridJawa ha rpur Pirozabad Transmission Limited 
Ind ia 

(erstwhile Jawaharpurfiroza bad Tra nsmission Limited) 

Powergrid Kh etri Transmission System Limited (Erstwhile 
Ind ia 

Khetri Tra nsco Limited)' 

PowergridBhuj Transmission Limited (Ershvhile Bhuj-Il 
lnd ia 

Transmission Limited)2 

PowergridBhindGuna Tra nsmission Limited (Erstwhile 
Ind ia 

BhindGuna Transmission Limited)3 

Powergrid Ajmer Phagi Transmission Limited (Erstwhile 
Ind ia 

Ajmer Phagi Tra nsco Limited)" 

Powergrid Fa teh ga rh Transmission Limited (Erstwhile 
Ind ia 

Pa tehga rh-II Transco Limited)S 

Power g rid Rampur SambhaJ Transmission Limited 
India 

(Erstw hile Ra mpur Sambhal Transco Limited)6 

Power grid Meerut Simbhava li Transm ission Limited 
India 

(Erstwhi le Meerut-Si mbhavali Transmission Limited)7 

1 100% equity acqu ired from REC Transmission Projects Limited on 29th Augus t, 2019. 

2 J00% equi ty acquired from PFC Consulting Li mited on 16th Octobe r, 2019. 

3 100% equity acqui red from REC Transmission Projects Limited on 11th September, 20 19. 

'100% eq uity acquired from REC Transmission Projects Limited on 03rd October, 2019. 

5 J00% equity acquired from PFC Consulting Limited on 14th October, 2019. 

6100% eq uity acquired from REC Transmission Projects Limited on 12Lh December, 20 19. 

7 J00% eq uity acqu ired from PFC Consulting Limited on 19th December, 2019. 

2020 

100% 100% 

Proportion of 

Ownership Interest 

31st 31st 

M arch, March, 

2020 2019 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N .A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.J\ N.A 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.J\ 

N.A N.A 

N.A N.A 



c) List of fellow Joint Ventures (JVs of Holding Co.) 

Proportion of 

Ownership Interest 

Name of entity Place of 31st 31st 

business/coun March, March, 

try of 2020 2019 

incorporation 

Power links Transmission Limited India N.A N.A 

Torrent Power Grid Limited India N.A N.A 

JaypeePowergrid Limited India N.J\ N .A 

ParbaliKoldam Transmission Company Limited India N.A N.A 

Teestavalley Power Transmission Limited India N.A N.A 

Norlh East Transmission Company Limited India N.A N.A 

National High Power Test Laboratory Priva te Limited India N.J\ N.A 

Bihar Grid Company Limited India N.A N.A 

KalingaVidyutPrasaran Nigam Private Limited# India N.A N.A 

Cross Border Power Transmission Company Limited India N.A N.A 

RINL Pow ergrid TLT Private Limited* India N.A N.A 

Power Transmission Company Nepal Ltd Nepal N.J\ N.A 

*POWERGRID' s Board of Directors in its meeting held on 1st May 2018 accorded in principle 

approval to close RIN L Powergrid TLT Private Limited and seek consent of o ther JV Partner 

Rashlriya Ispat Nigam Limited . Accordingly Provision for diminution in value of investment has 

been m ade by holding compan y. 

#Shareholders of M/ s Kalinga Bidyut Prasaran Nigam Pvt Ltd (KBPNL), JV between M/ s POWERGRID 

& M/s OPTCL in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 02.01.2020 approve lo sh·iking off the 

name of the company pursuant lo section 248 (2) of the Companies J\cl,2013. Accordingly, e-form STK-2 

vi.d e SRN NO- R30789564 has been filed in Registrar of Companies (ROC), Odish a on Dated 21.01.2020 for 

removal of name of Lhe Company. The present status of striking off of U1e Company (M/s KBPNL) as per 

MCA website is "Under Process of Striking Off". 

d) List of Key Management Personnel 

Name Designation Date of Appointment 

Shri R.K. Chauhan Chairman & Director w.e.f 22.01 .2019 and Continue 

Slu·iSun.itNathSahay Director Up to 31.01 .2020 

Shri K.S.R Murty Director w.e.f 15.03.2018 and Continuing 

Shri Abhay Choudhary Director w.e.f 07.05.2018 and Continuing 

Shri Rajesh Kumar Director w.e .f 30.12.2019 and Continuing 

Slu-i A.K. Mai.ti Director w .e.f 19.02.2020 and Continuing 

Slu·i N K Ohdar ~ 
·c,~J ~ 

Director Up to 11.11.2019 

ShriA.Barat 't( ~ ~ 
~ EO (Part Time) 

' 
w .e.f 19.11.2018 and Continuing 

! ~ ". ,\ 
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Shri N.L. Dhar CFO w.e.f30.12.2019and continuing 

Shri Mrinal ShTivastava Company Secretary w.e.f 04.01.2020 and Continuing 

(e) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services 

(tin Lakhs) 

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

Advances /Amounts Payable 

(Purchases of Goods and Services) 

Holding Co. 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 1277.80 3048.39 

(f)Investments Received during the year (Equity)(? in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

Holding Co. 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 28932.00 NIL 

(g)Loans Outstanding FromRelated Parties(t in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31March,2019 

Jlolding Co. 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 208225.60 126977.52 

(h) Interest Accrued on Loan (t in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

H olding Co. 

Power Grid Corpora tion of India Limited 2879.87 824.26 

Transactions with related parties 

(i) Consultancy Services Excluding Taxes 

The following transactions occu rred w ith rela ted parties: 

(t in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31March,2020 31 March, 2019 

Holding Co. 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 4199.71 5133.22 



(j) Interest on Loan 

f in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

Holding Co. 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 13341.50 4705.21 

(j) Loans received during the year 

f in Lakhs} 

Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

Holding Co. 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 81248.08 101720.74 

Note 30.Segment Information 

Business Segment 

The Board of Directors is the company's Chief operating decision maker who monitors the operating 

results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource alloca tion 

and performance assessment. The Company has Single Reportable Segment i.e. Transmission, identified 

on lhe basis of prod uclj services. 

The operations of the company are mainly carried out within the country and therefore there is no 

reportable geographical segment. 

Note 31.Capital and other Commitments 

(f in Lakhs} 

Particulars As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31March,2019 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on capital accow1t and not provided for 
33095.72 123385.20 

(Net of Advances) 

Note 32.Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Contingent Liabilities: 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of: 



Note 33. Disclosure on Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers 

The company has nol commenced its business/ operations and no revenue from contracts wilh 

customer has been booked for lhe Financial Year 2019-20. IJence Ind AS 115 is nol applicable Lo the 

company. 

Note 34.Ind AS 116 - Leases 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 with effect from 01.04.2019. Under the new s tandard, all lease 

conh·acts, with limited exceptions, are recognized in the financial statements by way of Right-of-Use 

(ROU) assets and corresponding lease liabilities. The Company h as applied the standard to its leases, 

using Lhe modified prospective method at the date of initial application (i.e. 01.04.2019), with the 

option to measure Lhe ROU asset at an amount equal to Lhe lease liability, adjus ted by the amount of 

any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to tha l lease recognized in Lhe balance sheet 

immediately before the date of initial application. Accordingly, U1e Company has not resta ted 

compara tive information and therefore will continue lo be reported under Lhe accounting policies 

included as part of our annual report for the year ended 31.03.2019. 

The company has applied the new standard to Lease hold land to evalua te whether U1ese conlTacls 

contains a lease or not. Based on evaluation of the lerms and condi tions of the arran gements, the 

Company has evalua ted such arrangements lo be leases. 

The Company has applied following practical expedients on h·ansition to lnd AS 116 on initial 

application: 

a) Use of single discount ra te to portfolio of leases of simila r assets in similar economic environment 

with similar end da te 

b) Exclusion of initial direct cos t from the measurement of the ROU asset a l Lhe date of initial 

a pp lica ti on 

c) Nol lo recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with remaining lease term of upto 12 

months from the date of initial application (i.e. 01.04.2019) by class o f asset and leases of low value 

asse t on lease by lease basis. 

On tran sition, the ado ption of U1e new standard resulted in recognition of " Right-of-Use asset" of 

~ 58 . 62 lakhs under no te no 4, and a corresp onding "lease liability" of ~58.62 lakhs under note no 12 

In respect of leases tha t were classified as finance leases applying lnd AS 17, an amount of ~1366 . 75 

lakhs has been reclassified as ROU assets. 



The following table provides a reconciliation of the Company's operating lease commitments as at 

31.03.2019 lo lhe total lease liability recognized on the balance sheet in accordance w ith Ind AS 116 as 

at 01.04.2019: 

Particulars Amount (~inlakhs) 

Operating lease commitments as at 31.03.2019 418.66 

Low value leases Nil 

Short-term leases Nil 

Effect of discounting 360.04 

Total lease liabilities at 01.04.2019 58.62 

Short term and low value leases: As part of transition, the Company has availed Lhe practical 

expedient of not to apply the recognition requirements of Ind AS 116 to short term and low value 

Leases for recognition of assets and liabilities related to leases. 

Effect of discounting: The adjustment pertains to the impact of discounting arrived based on the 

weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 7.16% on date of initial applica tion. 

a) As a Lessee:-

The company only has Lease hold land which has been assessed and accounted as per the 

requirements of Ind AS 116 - "Leases" and required disclosures as per the said Ind AS are as fo llows: 

(i) ROU Assets: 

Additions, termination/ disposal and deprecia tion charge on right of use assets for the yea r and 

carrying amount of the same as at Lhe end of the financial year by class of underly ing asset is been 

disclosed in note no 4 as a separate line item. 

(ii) Lease Liabilities: 

Interest expense on lease liabilities for the year is shown under note no 16 and to la I cash outflow for 

leases fo r the year has been disclosed in sta tement of cash flow under financing activities as separate 

line item and maturity analysis of lease liabilities has been disclosed in note no 13. 

(iii) Short term leases and Low value leases: 

The company docs nol have any short term and low value leases. 

b) As a Lessor:-

The company does not have any lease arrangements as a lessor 



Note 35. Previous Year Figures 

(a) The Previous Year's Figures have been rPClassified/re-grouped wherever necessary 

(b) figures have been rounded off to nearest rupees in lakhs upto two decimal. 
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